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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanpations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and Lhe changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur respansibilities under those Standards are
further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other infarmation
comprises the infarmation included In the Board of Directors' report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not caver the other information and we do naot EXPress
any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information Is materially inconsistent with
the financial slatements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

The Board of Directors' report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Ac
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a frue and fair view of t
financial position, financial perfermance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
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changes In equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This respansibility also
includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related te going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but te do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for averseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibliities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstalement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audlt procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than fer one resulting from
errer, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we
are also respansible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

»  Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
evenls or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to confinue as a
going concern. If we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, it such
disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events ar conditions
may cause the Company to cease Lo conlinue as a going concern.
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»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactons and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang ather matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Reporl) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), Issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give In
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Lhe Order.

2. Asreguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and pelief were necessary for the purposes of our audil;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as It appears from our examination of those books except:

that the back-up for books of account maintained In servers physically located in India for
one scitware used in the hotel business was not kept on a dally basis. Further, in respect
of another three software used in the hotel business which are operated by third party
service providers for which, in the absence of evidence in the Service Organisation
Controls repart, we are unable to comment on whether the backup of hooks of account
and other books and papers in respect of such software maintained in electronic mode
has been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in India; and

2. for the matters stated in the paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flaw Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are In agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

() The modification relating to the maintenance of accounis and other matters cannected
therewith are as stated in paragraph 2 (b) abave on reporting under Section 143(3)Db) and
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g);

{g) With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial contrals with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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{h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2025;

(i) WIith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2014, as amended |n our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I

vi.

The Campany has disclosed the impact of pending litigations en its financial position in
its financial statements - refer note 348 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any lang-term contracts including derivative cantracts for
which there were any material foresesable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred Lo the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The managemenl has represented that, Lo the best ol its knowledge and beliel, ather
than as disclosed in the note 43 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Cempany to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whelher recorded
in writing or otherwise, thal the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
orinvest in other persaons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiarias") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represanted that, to the best of its knewledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persan er entity, including foreign
entilles ("Funding Parlies™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
atherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend ar invest in ather
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or pravide any gquarantee, security or the like on behall
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audlt procedures performed that have been considered reasanable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to belleye that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Campany.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used two
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has cperated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except thal audit trail feature is
not enzbled for certain changes made, if any, using privileged/ administrative access
rights, as described in note 42 Lo the financlal statemernils.

During the course of our audit we did not come acrass any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with, in respect of accounting software where the audit trall has been

enabled.
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Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded
in the respective year except the audit trail for one software used in the hotel business
in respect of the year ended March 31, 2024 has not been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention, as stated In Note 42 to the
financial statements. Further, the Company has used three accounting software in the
hotel business which are operated by third-party software service providers. In the
absence of evidence on audit trall feature in the respective Service Organisation
Controls (SOC) reports, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of these
software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in this software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature
being tamperad with.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registralion Number: 324982E/E200003

per Mﬁtafa Saleem

Partner

Membership Number: 136969
UDIN: 25136969BMNSXU3T02
Place of signature: Pung

Date: May 12, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements" of our report of even date

Re: Panchshil Carporate Park Private Limited ("the Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge

and belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A)

(1) (a) (8)

(bl

(i

(i) ()

(i3 (=)

iy ay

(i3 (o)

(i) (@

(i (b)

The Company has maintained proper recerds showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Eguipment and Investmen!l Property.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investmenl Properly have been physically verified by the
managemeani during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification,

The title deeds of all the immovable properties disclosed in note 3 and 4 to the financial statements
are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Eguipment, Investment Property or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

There are no proceedings initialed or are pending against Lhe Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made

thereunder.

The managemenl has conducted physical verification af inventory al reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. There were no discrepancies of L0% or more in aggragate for each class of inventory.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limils (which Is a sublimit of term loans) in excess
of Rs. five crores in aggregate from a bank during the year con the basis of security of current assets.
The bank has walved off requirement of submitting quarterly statemenfs. Accordingly, the
requirement to repert on clause 3(ii) o) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. The Company
does not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores In aggregate from
financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

During the year the Company has provided loans to parties ather than subslidiaries, joint ventures

and associates as follows:
fAmount in INE Million)

Particulars Amount
Aggregate amount granted during the year
-Others 1,510.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheel date

| -Others 1,784.00

During the year the Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans, slood
guarantee or provided security to Limited Liability partnerships or any other parties.

During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans to companies and Limited Liability
Partnerships are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The Company did not make any
investments or pravide any guarantees or security during the year.
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(iii} (e)
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(iv)

(vl

(vi)

(wli) (a)

In respect of loans granted to companies and Limited Liability Partnerships, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated in the agreement. Hence,
we are unable to make a specific comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment
of interest In respect of such laans.

The following amounts of interest are overdue for more than ninety days from companies, to wham
loan has been granted and principal thereon has been repaid, and reasonable steps have been Laken
by the Company for recovery of the everdue amount of interest,

(Amount in INR Million)

Number of Cases Principal Amount Interest Overdue Total Overdue
Overdue {INR million) {INR million)
2 NIl 266.19 266.19

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies and Limited Liability
Partnerships which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

As disclosed in nate 7 to the financial statements, the Company has granted loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies during the year.
Of these following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of
loans granted to promoters or related parties as defined in clausa (78) of section 2 of the

Companies Act, 2013.
fAmount in INR Million)

All parties Related parties
Aggregate amount of loans
- Repayable on demand 1,510.00 1,060.00
Percentage of loans to the total loans 100% T0.20%

Laans in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 aof the Companies Act, 2013 are, to
the extent applicable, have been complied with by the Company. The Company has not made any
investment or given any security or guarantee during the year.

The Company has nelther accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order |s not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

The Company is regular In depositing with appropriate autherities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of
customs, Maharashtra value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.
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Cwily (b The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, Income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Mature of Amount Period to which Forum where the dispute
statute the dues (Rs. In the amount is pending.
Millian) relates

Service Tax Service 33.32 | FY 2013-14 and Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax FY 2014-15 of Central Tax

Service Tax Service 11.78 | FY 2015-1& and Commissioner (Appeals)
Tax FY 2016-17 of Central Tax

(il The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books

of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report an clause 3(viil) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or ather borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(ix) (b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government ar any government authority.

(ix)(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(ix) (d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-

term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix) (e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
reguirement to report an clause 3(x)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(Ix) (F) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate ar Joint venture. Accordingly, the
reguirement to report an Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable ta the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of Initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt Instruments) hence, the requirement ta report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order

Is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (b) The Campany has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares [fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reparted
during the year,

(xid (b} During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xiy (c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xi1) The Company Is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013, Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)a), 3(x/i)(b) and 3(xiiXc) of the Order Is not ap to

the Company.
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Exiii

(xiv) (a)

{xiv) (b)

(%)

(xvi) (a)

(i) (2D

(xvi) (€)

Cxwid) ()

(xwiid

(xwili)

{xla)

(xx) (a)

Transactions with the related parties are In compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the detalls have been disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The Campany has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We were unable to obtain some of the internal audit reports of the Company, hence the internal
audit reports have not been entirely considerad by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company,

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are nel
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)Xa) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged In any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)b) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

The Company Is not a Cere Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of Lhe Order [s not applicable

to the Company.
The Group has one unregisterad Core Investment Company as part of Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and iImmediately preceding financial
year,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclesed In note 38 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has came to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company Is not capable of meeting its liabllities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of ene year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabllity of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit repart
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall

due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Acl), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed In nofs
26,02 to the Tinanclal statements.
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(xx) (b} There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are reqguired ta be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 26.02 to the financial statements.

For SREC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Fir egistration Number: 324382E/E300003

NiA

per Mis'tafa Saleem
Partner

Membership Number: 136969
UDIN: 25136969BMNSXU3TO2
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: May 12, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Panchshil
Corporate Park Private Limited ("the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control ever financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI"), These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Campanies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsiblility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Sta ndards and the Guidance Mote
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adeguate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statemeants was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively In all material
respects.

Our audit involves perfarming procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our quallfied audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statemeants.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's Internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements Includes those policies and procedures Lhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of recards
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made anly In accaordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibllity of collusion or Improper management override of contrals,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
avaluation of the [nternal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future
perfods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial
stalements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based an our audit, the fallowing
material weakness has been Identified as at March 31, 2025:

The Company did not have appropriate Information Technalogy General Controls (ITGCs) in respecl
of application software used by the Company. related to managing program changes and managing
access, which could potentially result |n misstatements to the relevant account captions in the
financial statements.

A 'material weakness’ is a deficlency, or a combinatian of deficiencies, in internal financial contral
with reference to the financial statements, such that thereisa reasonable possibility Lthat a material
misstatement of the company's annual financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our apinion, except for the possible effects of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financia! reporting criteria established by the
Company cansidering the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note Issued
by the ICAL
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Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by [CAl, as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial statements of the Company, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the related Statement of Profit and Loss including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flaw Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information. This material weakness was
considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the
March 21, 2025 financial statements of the Campany and this report does not affect our report dated
May 12, 2025, which expressed an ungualified opinion on thase financial statements.

ForSRBCECOLLP
Chartered Accountants
|CAlFIrfhRegistration Number: 324982E/E300003

per MJstafa Saleem

Partner

Membership Number;: 136965
LUDIN: 25136969BMNSXU3T02
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: May 12, 2025




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

CIN: U72900PN2005PTC142131

Balance Sheat as at March 31, 2025

[Al ampunts afe In lndlan Supees milllons, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment an 3,063.96 3,478.59
Cepital work-in-prograss 48 111.50 152.94
Ineestment properties 54 4,559,63 4,403.20
Investment property under developmant 58 2269 66,67
Intanglole assets B 0.8 0.81
Financial assats
Other finzrcial assets B Ti0% 63.88
Other nan-current dssets 10 21208 46,42
B,163.76 8,208,51
Current assets
Inventoriss i1 32.43 4,71
Financial assats
Trade receivables 12 8165 84,78
Cash and cash equivalents 13A 38247 203.17
Other hank batances 138 194.21 213.01
Loars 7 214574 1,762,739
Other financial assers a 29,64 19,83
DOther currant assets 10 &7.35 45.69
2,083.55 2,363.98
TOTAL 11,147.31 10,572.49
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equilty share capital 14 0.49 .49
Other equity 15 4,957,08 3,455,850
4,557.57 3,456,009
MNon-current lkabilities
Financlal Habilities
Borrowlings 16 3,552.47 4 283 .50
Other financial liabilities 17 B24.87 676,32
Daferrad tax lizkility ] 158.00 105,38
Prowisions 20 944 8.50
Other Habilities 14 229.44 377.76
&,774.22 5,450,456
Current Habilities
Financial liabllitles
Barrowings 15 300 34 316649
Trade payablas
- Tatzl outsTanding dues of micro enterprises and small anterprises 18 11,50 14.29
- Tatal outstanding duss of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 18 57.99 100.94
Other financizl liabilitias 17 53256 B56.15
Other current liaollities 11 24350 450,94
Provisions a0 212 2.00
Current tak labllity net) 1 8221 7513
1,375.52 1,665.94
Taotal liabilitias 6,149.74 711640
TOTAL 11,147.31 10,572.49
Material accounting policies and other explaratony notes. ]

Thie accompanying nates are an wtegrsl port of the Financoal Satements

Ag per our report of even date

For 5A B CE&COLLP
Accountants
n o 324982E/E300003

Membership No.: 1369659
Place; Pung
Datz: May 12,2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Panchshll Corporate Park Private Limited

AN

Paresh Ajit Bafna
Director

DIN: 02033179
Place: Pune

Dats: May 12,2025

DiM: D13230B0

Date; May 12,2025




Panchshil Carporate Park Private Limited

CIN: U72900PN2005PTC142131

Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts ars in Indian Rupees millions, unless atherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue from operations a2 4,072,668 3,608.75
Other Income 23 337.713 44418
Total income {1} 4,410.39 4,052.93
Expenzes
Cost of foed, beverapes and other operating supplies 24 215.73 196.87
Employes benafits expense 25 27251 236.96
Oither expensas 26 TE4.74 77025
Finance costs 28 448,14 505.35
Dapraciation expense 27 700.30 78752
Total expenses (i) 2,430,51 2,496.75
Prafit before tax (Il =1-1) 1,979.88 1,556.18
Tax expenses:
Current tax 3d 444 b4 445,63
Tax in respect of earlier years 3a [55.84) 1.50
Deferred tax 3a 5157 375
Total tax expenses 440,35 450.87
Prafit far the year 1,538.53 1,105.31
Other comprehensive incomao
Other comprehansive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss n subsequent
TS
Re-measurement gains an defined benefit plans 3.00 2.45
Tax impact on above {L05) 10.71}
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 1.95 174
subsaquent years [net of tax)
Total comprahensive income for the year, net of tax 1,541.48 1,107.05
Eamings per equity share of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024: INR 10 each)

29 31,551.02 20,163.54

EPS basic and diluted [in INR)

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the Financial Stataments

As per gur report of aven date

ForSRBCECOLLP
Chartered Accauntants
i egistralion Mo 324982 E/E3000032

per Mgiytafa Saleem
Partnegr

Membership Na.: 136969
Place: Pung

Date: May 12,2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Panchshil Corparate Park Private Limited

Parash Ajit

Director Director
DIN: 02033175 Din: 01323080
Place: Pune Place: Puna

Date: May 12,2025 Date: May 12,2025




Panchshll Corporate Park Private Limited
CIN: UF2900PNZ005PTCIA2131
staterment of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

[All amounts are b Indian Rupess millions, unless othenwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A, Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,979.E8 1.556.18
Ad|ustments for;
Depreciation 709.39 674,08
Libility no langar required writtasn back {0.62) {12 62}
lLoss on sale/discarded property, plant and equipment 161 1.7
Profit an sale of current investmant 9.149) (19.78)
Browislan for doubtful receivables and acvances {3.02) 987
Finance costs aqg.14 452 35
Exchange Loss [unrealised) 118
Interest income [187.37) [226.55)
Operating profit bafere working capital changes 2.944.01 2,405.22
Movements in working capital
Increass tn othar non cufrEnt assets {177.74) [35.23)
{Increase)/desrease in inveniones 241 [4.33)
{Incraase)/decraasa in trade recelvables 315 |5.60]
Increasa m other current financial assets (77.20) [1.16)
incrazse in other non current financizl assets {B.57] [17:63]
|increase)/decrepse it other current assets (1.04] 16.91
Increase/|decrease) in trade payables [7a3) 19.57
Increase in other nos-cusrent finzncial liabalities 11374 447 25
Incraase/|decreasa) in other non-current liabilities |147.82) a9
Decrepse i other current financial liabiltiss |£58.74] [516.15|
Increasef{decrease) in other currant latulities [202.44] 280,30
Imcrease in provisions 3.66 451
Cash generated from operathons 2,287.29 2,589.45
Direct tanes paid (net of refunds) [371.68] (35512}
Met cash flow generated from operating activities [a) 191561 2.214.33
B. Cash flows from Investing acthdties
Payments towards purchase of property, plant and eguipmint und capital work in progress {33.38) 123.00)
Purchase owards investment property & investment proparty under construction (445 95) -
Proceeds from sale af property, plant and equipmeant 213 543
|mvestment in uniss of mumesl funds 11,060.00) (4,078.00)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 1,0659.19 4.816.14
Proceeds receved from maturity of fixed deposits 249639 1.185:13
Ireestment in fiked deposits [2,475.80] {1,095.001
|nterest recetved an term deposits and inter-corparate deposits 118.54 391.81
Proceeds from repayment of intar-corporate deposis TAB.B4 5.417.00
Loans ghian in this farm of mtes-corporate deposits [1,260.00) 14,312.400
Met cash flow generated from//{used in) investing activities (8] {B20.04) 23011
. Cash Mows from financing activities
Payment in connection with buyhack of eguity share capita! {including tawes) * (L7872}
Proceeds [rom bomowings - 1,000.00
Repayment of barrowings [711.300 |4,359,15)
Interest and finance charges paid [net) [374.97) {494.39)
Dividend paid - [1,821.28)
Met cash llow used in financing activities [C) {1,085.27) 4,453.54)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 189,30 T8.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 203,37 13517

192,47 20317

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Umited
CIN: UT2900PN2005PTCI4213]
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

Al amounts are in Indian Rupess milions, unless otherwisa stated|

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cesh sguivalents include
Bolances with banks 30207 i01.83
Cash on kand 040 134
352.47 103,17

Total cask and cash equivalents [refer note 134)

The accompartylig notes are an integral part of the Financlal Statzments

As per our report of sven date

For SAGCA COLLP
ACCOUNTANLE

gu-'y}wtm Mo 324982E/£300003

Membership Mo, 136959
Placs: Puns
Date: May 12,2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors af

Paresh Ajit Bafna
Director

DIN: 02033179
Placs: Puns
Date! May 12,2025

Panchehil Carparate Park Private Limited /

ronkh Khan
Director
DMM: 01323080

Pliace! Pune
Drate: May 12,2025




Panchshil Corparats Park Private Limited

Cin: U7 2900PMN200SPTCL42131

Staterment of Changas in Eguity for the yeor ended March 31, 2025
{AH gmaunts are in indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity share capital

Amaunt in million In nuimbers

Equity shares of INR 10 gach Issued, subscribed and fully paid-upt As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 Az at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
&t the beginning of the year .45 0,55 4E,795 55,258
Chastges in equity share capita! due to prics periad arrars® - - - -
Batance at the beginning of the current reporting year 0.48 0,55 48,795 55259
Buyback of shired (refer note 14]ei) . |0.06] - |&.A64]
At the end of the year 048 0.49 448,735 48,795

o A=fer note 14,

= There ara no changes in equity share capital des 1o pror penod erras

. Dther eguity

AraErees angd surphs Total
Capitsl redemplion Securithes preminm Retained earnings
resene
Balance as &t April 01, 2023 0.05 3,470,568 1,477.05 5,948.49
Profit far the year 1,106.31 1.105.31
Othar comprehensive noome - 1.74 174
Total camprehensive income for the year anded March 31, 2024 - - 1,107.05 1,107.05
Add/(Less): Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve oo [T = a
Less Utilsod towards buy back of shares [refior note 14(e)] (1,615.53] - (1,615.53]
Less: UtiEsed for Dovidand - - (L321.28) {1,821 28|
L Taw on Buy back of shares [refer note 14{a|] {18272} (162.72}
Balance as st March 31, 2024 ni2 1.654.58 1.600.20 3 A55.50
Prafit for tha year 1,539.53 1.539.53
DOtfer comprahensive incomse 1.85 185
Tatal comprehznsive incoma far the year ended March 31, 2025 - 154148 1,541.48
o1z 1,854,58 314238 2,997.08

Balance as at March 31, 2025

The accompanying robes are an intepral gars of the Finanoal Statemants

A5 por our report of even date
FarSRBCECO LLP

unkaEnts
ion Mo 320982E/2 300003

I

Mamberhip Now 15696%
Place: Pune
Date: May 12,2025

forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Panchshil Corparate Park Private Limited

Pamesh Ajit i
Directar
Dl 2033179
Maces: Puna

Date: May 12 2025

DHN: 13230610
Placa: Puna
Date: May 11,3025




panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
CIN: U72900PMN2005PTC142131
MNotes to the Financial Statements

Material Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes to the financial statements

21

Corporate informatian

Panchshil Carporate Park Private Limited (the "Company”) was incarporated on September 15, 2005 as a private limited company
domiciled I india under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1958 engaged in the business of leasing of cammercial spaces and
operation of a commercial hotel. Its registered and principal office of business is located at Tech Park One, Tower 'E', Mext to Dan

Bosco Schoal, OFf Alrport Road, Yerwada, Pune -411006.

The financial staterments as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and approved far
issus on May 12, 2025,

Basis for preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified
under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time} and presentation requlrements
of Divisian 1l of Schedule |l to the Campanies Act, 2013 {ind AS compliant Schedule NI

The financial statements have been grepared on @ historical cost basis, excent for certain financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value or revalued amount at the end of each reparting period.

The financial staterments are presented in INR and &/l values are rounded to the nearest milllan {INR 000,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

summary of material accounting policies
a) Currentversus non-turrent classification

The Company presents assets and liabllities other than deferred tax assets and liabilitles in the balanea sheet based on
Current / nan-current classification as per the Campany’s normal operating cycle and other criterla set out in Schedule ||
{Divisian 11} to the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and llabilities.

An asset is treated as current when it 15
»  Expacted to be reallsed or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Hald primarily for the purpose of trading
s Expectad 1o be reallsed within twelve months after the reporting period, ar
s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period
All other assets sre classified as non-current.

A llability s treated as current liability when either:
s Itis expected to be settled In normal operating cycle
s Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
s Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
«  Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlernent of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting pe riod

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its sattlement by the issue of equity instruments
do not affect its classification.

All ather liabilities are classified as nonr-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acqulsition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash eguivalents.
The Company has identified twealve months as its operating cycle.

b] Foreign currencies

The financial statemants are presented in INR, which is also the Company's functional currency

Transactions and balances

ransactions n foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Campany at the functional currency spot rates at the date the
nsaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
roximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.



Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
CIN: U72900PN2005PTC142131
Motes to the Financial Statements

Manetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising an ssttlament or transiation of monatary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured n terms af historical cost In a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the imitial transactions. Nan-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value Is detarmmined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monatary llems
measurad at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {le,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC) ar profit or loss are also recognised in OCI ar
profit or loss, respactively).

€] Fair value measurement

The Company measuras financial instruments, such as, investments in mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair-
value related disclosures for financizl Instruments and nan-financial assets that sre measured at fair value or where falr values are
disclosed, are disclosed in nate 36.

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to tra nsfer a lishility in an arderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measuremeant js based on the presurnption that the transaction to sell the
assat or transfer the liabllity takes place eithar:

s inthe principal market for the asset or [iability. or

s+ inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the azset or llability.

The principal or the most advantagegus market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability ls measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when gricing the asset
or liahility, assuming that market participants act in thelr economic best interest.

A falr value measuremant of a non-financial asset takes Into account @ market participant’s ability to generate economic benafits
by using the asset In its ighest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in |t highast
and best use. i

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstancas and for which sufficlent data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obserable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and llabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the Fair
valug hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
« Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilities
s Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurerment is directly
ar indirectly observable
« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unchservable

Far assets and liabllities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfars have occurred batween levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that |s
significant to the fair value measuremant as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

The Company's management determines the policles and pracedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such unguoted
financial assets measured at fair value and for non-recurring measurement, such as non-current assets held for sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liahilities such as investrment property. Invalvement of external
valuars is decided upon annually by the managemeant. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and lizbllities on the basis of the natlre,
charactaristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level af the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting palicy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosuras are given in the relevant notes
- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
- Quantiative disclosures of fair value measuremant hisrarchy

- Investmant properties
Financial instruments {including those carried at amartised cost)




Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
CIN: U72900PN2005PTC142131
MNotes to the Financial Statements

d] Revenue from operations
Rental income from investment property

Rental income from property leased under operating lease is recognized in the income statement on a stralght-line basis over the
term of the lease. The lease term |5 the nan-cancellable period together with any further term for which the tenant has the option
to continue the lease, where, &t the Inception of the lease, the Company Is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that
mption. The Campany collects Goods and service 12x on behalf of the government and therefore, itis not an econom|c banefit flowing
to the Company. Hence, it s excluded from revenue. Contingent rents ([ any are recognized as revenue in the period in which they
are aarned.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Reverue from operations is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferrad to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration ta which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in Its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

(I} Hotel Operations

Rooms, Food, Beverage and other allied hotel services including banquet services:

Reverue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes room
revenue, food and beverage sale and banguet services which is recognized once the rooms are occupled, food and
beverages are sold and banguet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer. Roam revenue is
recognized over time while revenue from sale of food and beverages Is recognized at 2 paint in time. In relation to other
allied hotel services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered,

(i) Commercial leasing

Maintenance charges:
Malntenance charges arising from aperating leases are recognized over time as and when the services are rendered. The

Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, tharafore, these are not econamic benefits
flawing to the Company, Hence, they are excluded fram revenue,

Sale of construction material, including fitout sale:
Revenue fram sale of construction materials is recognized at a point In time when control of the goods have been

transferrad to the customer. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore,
these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, thay are excluded from revenue.

Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in @ contract includes a varjable amount (Ike volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc.), the
Company estimates the amount of cansideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for re noering the services to the
custormer. The variable consideration s estimated at contract Inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the sssociated
uncertalnty with the varlabla consideration is subsequently resolvied. The estimate of variable consideration for expacted
future valume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc, are mada on the most likely amount method. Revenue is disclosed
net of such amounts.

Contract balances
Contract Asset

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from rooms, food, beverage and other allled hote| services
including banquet services because the recelpt of consideration is conditianal on successful completion of the contract.
Upan completion of the performance obligation, the amaunt recognised as contract assets is reclassifled to trade
receivables,

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on Impairment of financial assets in
section p) Financial instruments - inltial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade recelvables
A recelvable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is reguired before payment of the consideration |s due). Refer to saction () Financial Instrumengs= ed

at amartised cost. TRCHOA N
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Motes to the Financial Statements

e}

Contract liabilities

A contract liability s the obligation to render services Lo a customer for which the Company has recelved consideration
{or an amount of consideration is due) from the custamer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company renders
service: to the customer, a contract liabllity is recognized when the payment is made. Contract liahilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs undar the contract,

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be recoversd from or paid to the taxation
autharities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Current income tax relating to ftems recognised outside profit or loss s recognised outside profit ar loss (either In other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in carrelation to the underlying transaction aither in OC|
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 1o situations In which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpratation and considers whether it is probahle that a taxation autharity will sccept
an uncertain tax treatment. Tha Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either
most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatmant.

Deforred tax

Deferred tax Is provided using the liability method on temporary diffararices between the tax bases of assets and [i2bilitles and
thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the rpo rtirg date.

Oaferrad tax liabilities are racognised for all texable temporary differences, except:

s When the deferred tax lizbility arises from the Initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not 2 business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects nelther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

oss

s In respect of taxable temporary differences assoclated with investments In subsidiaries, associstes and interests in [oint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will nat reverse In the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is probable that taxa ble profit will be avaifable against
which the deductible temparary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

Exeept:

s  When the deferred tax assat relating to the deductible temporary difference arlses from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability In @ transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does nat give rise (o prual taxshle and deductible temporary differences,

s Inrespectof dedurtible temperary differences geencigted with Investments in subsidiaries, associates and interasts [n |aint
ventures, deferrad tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the tempaorary differences will
roverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temparary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred @mx assets is raviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that It is no longer
orobable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred Lax asset to be utilised, Linrecognised
defarred tax assets 2re re-assessad at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
futiure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset td bie recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assetis raalised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates |and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised cutside profitorfossis recognised outside profit or loss (gither in other comprehansive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly In

aquity.

Deferred tax ossets and deferred tax liabilitles are offset if a lzgally enforceahle right exists to set off current tax assets against
currant tax liabilities and the deferrad taxes relate to the samea taxation autharity,

nods and Service Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
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Expenses and assets are recognised net af the amount of Goods and Service tax paid, except:
e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services 15 ot recaverd ble fram the tax authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense [tem, as 2p plicable
e When recelvables and payables are stated with the amount of tax inclu ded

The nat amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is Included as part of receivables or payables in the
balance sheet,

fl Property, plant and equipment and capital waork in progress

The Capitsl work in progress Is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and equipment. are
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase
price, borrowing costs if recognition criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working conditian
for the intended use. On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to cantinue with the carrying valuz of all Praperty, alant
and eguipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deamed cost of Property, plant and

aguipment.

Whan significant parts of property, plant and equipment ara required to be replaced at intervals, the Compary depreciatas them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when 8 major Inspection is perfarmed, Its cost is recognised In the
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognised n the statament of profit or loss as incurred. CWIP comprisas of cost of property plant
and equipment that are not yet ready for intended use as at balance sheet date,

An item of property, plant and eguipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-racognised upan disposal or when
no futiire economic benefits are expected from its use or dispasal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognitian of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assst) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognise d.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation af property, plant and eguipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, If appropriate.
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Investment praperty

Invastmant properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, Subsaquent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost ess accumulated depreciation and sccumulated impairment loss, if any,

The cost Includes purchase cost of land, the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs far long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met, When significant parts of the investrment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All ather repair and maintenance costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to continue with the carrying valuz of all investment
property measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of investment property,

Though the Company measuras investment property Using rost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited extarnal

Independant valuer,

Investment properties are de-recognised alther when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn
#rom use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset s recognisad In the statemant of profit or loss in the periad of de-recognition.

‘transfars are mada to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Tra rsfers between investment
property, owner-occupled property and inventeries do nat change the carrying amount af the property transferred and they do
not change the cost of that property for measuremant or disclosure purposes,

Intangible Assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, inta neible assets
ara carried at cost less accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment lossas, If any.

\ntangible assets with finite useful lives are amartised over thair useful econamic lives and assessed for impalrment whenever
thers is an [ndication that the intangible asset may ba impalred. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
Intangible assat with a finite usaful |ife are reviewed at least at the end of each reparting period. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite |lves is recognised In the statement of profit and |oss in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assats unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (Le., at the date the recipient chtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expectad from Its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measurad
as the difference batween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit or lass when the asset is derecognised.

Degreciation and amortization

Depreciation an property, plant and equipment and investment property and amortization on intangible sssets Is calculated on
& Written Down Value ("WDV*} and Straight-Line Methad {"SLM") basis, raspectively, using the rates arrlved at based on the
usaful lves astimatad by the management.

The idantifled companents are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the ramaining components are depreciated over
the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its proparty, plant and

aguipment and investment property.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates some assets
over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed In Schedule |1 to the Companies Act, 2013 (refer
table below), The depreciation expense on property, plant and equipment and investment property is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are lkely to be used.

THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Useful Life Estimated by the
Management [years) Useful lives as per
—
I & Commercial Hotel Schedule |l {years)
| office space
| Building 60 QN B0
Plant and
Equipment 15 A1s -
Electrical
[nstallations 10 10 10
Furniture and
Flcthirms 8 10 10
Computers 3-b 3-6 -6
Office Equipment 5 5 5
Vehicles 8 | 8 8

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide amartization on its intanglble assets, The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised In the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the
function of the Intangible assets

Useful Life Estimated by the
Management [years)
— Commercial office |
space
Computer Saftware 3-10 3-10

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, con structlon ar production of an asset that necessarily takes a su bstantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All ather
borrowing costs are expensed |n the period they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, ar contains, 2 lease is tased on the substance of the arrangement at the
incention date. The arrangement s assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 3 specific
asset or assats or the arrangement conveys a right to use the assat or assels, even iF that right is not axplicitly specified in 2n

arrangement.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recovarable amount. An
azcat’s recoverable amount s the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGL) Falr value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets ar groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
axceeds its recoverable amaount, the asset s considered impaired and Is writtan down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash tlows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time valus of maney and the risks spacific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identifled, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation an detalled budgets and forscast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the Company's cash-generating units to which the indlvidual assats are allocated. Thase budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For langer periods, 3 long-term grawth rate is calculated gos-mts
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections bieyond periods coverad by Lhyfnes ;
udgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budgat using a steady or declining,f

bsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not E:-u:z
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average growth rate for the industries in which the Company operates, or {ar the market in which the assat is used.
impairment losses of continuing operations are reco gnized in the statement of profit and loss.

m] Inventories

inventory of food, beverages and other supplles are valued at lower af cost and estimated net realizable value, Cost is
determined on a weighted average basis. Costs Include cost of purchase including dutles and taxes {other than refundable),
inward freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less pstimated costs of completion and
sstimated costs necassary to make the sale,

n]  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of 2 past evenl, itls
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will ba required to settle the obligation and a reliable
petimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects same or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an Insurance contract, the reimbursemeant s recognised as @ separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement s virtually certain. The expense relating to @ provision ks presented in the statement of prafit and loss net of any
raimbursement.

If the affect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discountad using a current pra-tax rate that reflects, whan
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time

is recognised as a finance cost.
o] Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is:
(aj a possible abligation arising from past eventsand whose existence will be confirmed anly by the occurrence ar non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or

{b} a present abligation that arises from past events but Is not recognized because;
- it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or
- the amount of the obligation cannot be measurad with sufficient reliability.

The Company does not recognize & contingent liabillty but discloses the same as per the requirements of ind AS 37,

pl Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that ghves rise to & financial asset of one entity and a fimnancial lizbllity or e ¢ lnstryment
af another entity.

Financial assets

Classification

Financial assets are classified, st initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
comprehensive income {FYTOC!') of fair value through profit or loss {('FVTRL'),

Initial recognition and measurament

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow charscteristics
and the Company’s business mode| for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not containa significant
financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial
asset at Its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at faif value through profit or loss, transaction costs, Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expediznt
re measured at the transaction price determined under (nd AS 115. Refer to the accounting palicies In section {d) Revenue from
contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measurad at amortised cost or fair value through 0CI, it needs to give rise to
"ﬁ!:ash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest [SPPI) an the principal amount gutstanding. This assessmant is
& |refarred to as the SPPI tastand (s performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with ca sh flows that are not SPPI are classified
Q‘-‘“‘;a'. and measured at fair value through profil or loss, irrespective of the business mo del.
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The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages ks financial assets in order to ganerate
cash flaws. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business mode! with the
ohbjective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OC| are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and

selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delfivery of assets within & time frame astablished by regulation or convention
in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised an the trade date, i2., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurament

For purposes of subsequent measurament, financial assets are classified in three categories:
=  Atamaortised cost
s Atfairvalue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)
s Atfairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
«  the financial asset is held within a business mode| whose abjective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and
. the contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initlal measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measurad at amortised cost using the effective interest rata
{'EIR') method, less impalrment, Amartised cost s calculated by taking inta accountany discount or premium on acqulsition and
#ees of coste that are an intearal part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included in finance expense/ {income) in the profit and
loss statemant, The losses arising fram impairment are recognised in the statement af profit and less. This categary generally
applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits recehva ble by the company.

Financial assets classified as measured at FVTOCI
There are no financial assets which are measured at FYTOCI.

Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at falr value with net changes In fair value
recognised in the statemant of profit and loss. Such instrumeants are measured at fair value at initial recognition as well as at
each reporting date. The fair value changes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss eg mutual fund. Further, the
Company may make an (rrevorable election to designate a financial assat as FYTPL, at inltial recognition, to reduce or eliminata
a measuremeant or recognition inconsistency.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets] is primarily de-
recognised (|.e. reroved from the Company's balance sheet) when
» the rights to recelve cash flows from the asset have expired, ar
s the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
recelved cash fows in full without material delay to & third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either |a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, ar [b) the Company has neither
transferrad nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected cradit loss (ECL) model for maasurament and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:
s Trade receivables
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The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes In credit risk. Rather, It recognises
impairment loss allowance based on |[fetime ECLs at each reparting date, right from Its initial recognition.

For recognition of Impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has
heen a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is
usad to provide for impairment loss.

ECL impairmant loss allowance (or reversal] recognized during the period |s recognized as income/ expense in the statement of
prafit and loss except for impairment loss / (gain) on financial assets measured at FYTOC!, which shall be recognized In the OCL

Financial liabilities
Classification

Financial |fabillties arz classifled, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured st amo rtised cost or fair value through profit
or loss {'FVTPL').

Initial recognition and measurement

Einancial lizbilities are recognised |nitially at fair valug net off in the case of financial liabllities not classiflad as fair value through
profit or loss ['FVTPL'), transaction cests that are attributable to the issue of the financlal liability, Financial [abilities are
recognised |n the Balance Shaat when the Company becomes a party 10 the contractual provisions of the Instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company ganerally classifies intarest bearing borrowings as financial
liabilities at amartised cost. After initial recognition, these instruments are subsequently measu red at amortised cost using the
EIR method, Gains and losses are recognisad in the statement of prafit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium an acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs In the statement of profit and |oss.

Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Finaricial llabilities at fair value through prafit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financlal liabilities designated
as such upon Initial recognitian. Financial lizbilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are
not designated as hedging instrumants in hedge relationships as defined by Ind A5 109, Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised (n the satement of profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the criteria in Ind A5 109 are
satisfied. For liabliities designated as FYTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsegquently transferred to the statement af profit and loss. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or Ioss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such fiability sre recognised in the statemant

of profit and loss.
The Company has not designatad any financial liability as at feir value through profitand lass,

De-recognition

A financial llability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability Is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liahllity is replaced by another from the sama lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially medified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the de-recognition aof tha original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Dffsetting of financial instrumeants

Elnancial assats and financial labliities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
anforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts apg: an Intention to settie an a net basis, to realise the assats
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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q)

r)

t

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheat comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and short-tarm deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible inta known amounts of cash and are
subject ta an insignificant risk of changas in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part af the Company's cash management,

Provision for employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the farm of provident fund is a defined cantribution scheme. The Company has ne obligation, ather than
the cantributions payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as an expenditure in the statement of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

Post-employment benefit in the form of gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of ebligation under
the schame is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projectad unit credit method (‘PUCM'), The scheme is non-

funded.

Re-rrieasurements, camprising of actuarial gains and |osses and the return an plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
intarest on the net defined benefit liabllity), are recognised immediately In the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit 1o retained earnings through OC| in the period In which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Dast sarvice costs are recognised in the staterment of profit and loss on the earlier of:

« The date of the plan amendment or curtailment and
» The date on which the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net intarast is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabllity ar asset. The Company recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obllgation under ‘employes beneafit expenses’ in the statement of profit and
loss:

# Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtallments and non-routing
settlements
® Met interest expense or incoma

refar Note 35 for additional disclosures relating to Company’s defined benafit plan.

Pravision for compensated absences

Provision for short term compensated absences |s recognized For accumulated leaves that are expected to be utilized within a
period of twelve months fram the balance sheet date. Long term compensated absences are provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation, using projected unit credit method, as at each reporting date. The Company recognises the entire changes
in provision for compensatad absences, including re-measurements in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Earnings par share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit ar loss for the period attributatile to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or lass forthe period attributa ble to equity shareholders

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potentizl
aquity shares,

Other income
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Interest Income:

Interast Ineome is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate ('EIR")
applicable. For all financial instruments measured at amertized cost, interest Income is racorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset, Intersst income is includad
[ other income In the statement of profit and loss.

Note 3A: Changes In accounting policies and disclosures

Note 38:

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendmants, which are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2024. The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but

iz not yet effective.

(i} Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts t
The Ministry of corparate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, yide notification dated 12 August 2024,

under the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective fram annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024,

ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disciosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applias to all types
ofinsurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial Instruments
with discretionary participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general maodel,
supplemented by:

» 4 specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the varizble fea approach)

« & simplified approach [the pramium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application ol Ind AS 117 had no Impact an the Company’s financial statements as the Company has not entered any
contracts in the nature of Insurance contracts covered Under Ind AS 117,

[ii) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
The MCA notified tha Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116,

Leases, with respact to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment spacifies the requirements thata seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease [iability arising In 2 sale and leaseback
transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
Tha amendmeant is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively
to sale and l=aseback transactions enterad into after the date of initial application of Ind AS 118,

The amendment doss not kave 2 matarial impact on the Company's financial statements.

Changes in accounting policles and disclosures
The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of lssuance of the
Company's financial statements are disclosed below. The Company will adopt this new and amended standard, when it become

effective.

(1) Lack of exchangeability — Amendments to Ind AS 21
The Ministry of Carporate Affalrs notified smendments to Ind AS 21 The Effacts of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rates to specify

how an entity should assess whether a currency s exchangeable and how it chould determing a spot exchange rate when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments aiso require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial statemeants
to understand how the currency not bieing exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the antity's
financial performance, financial position and cash flows. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on ar after 1 April 2025, Whan applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative Infermation.

The amendment does nat have a materlal impact on the Company’s financial statemeants.

[THIS SPACE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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Mote 3C ; significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
cantingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result In cutcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liahility affected In future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policles, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised In the financial statemants:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Campany has entered (nta commerclal property [2ases an its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not canstituting a major part of
the ecanamic life of the commereial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of thase properties and accounts for the lease contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptlons

The Company basad its assumptions and estimates, concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncer@inty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, on parameters available when the financial statements weare prepared. Existing circumstances and
assurnptions about future develcpments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the
Company’s control, Such changes are reflected in the assumptlons when they occur,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation Involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developmants in the future.
Thesa include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined banefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumprions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of governmant bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of tha
past-employment benefit abligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly avallable mortality tables. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at Interval In respanse to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates.

Determining useful life of property plant and equipment

Determination of useful life of the property plant and equipment and investment property requires the management to make
estimatas/assumptions and have a significant Impact an financlzl staterments for the year ended March 31, 2025,
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Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

CIN; U72900PN2005PTC142131

HNotes to the Financial Statements

[All amounts are In Indian Rupees millions, unless gtherwise stated)

Note &
Intang/ble assets as at March 31, 2025
Computer software Total
Gross carrying valuz
Opening balance 17.39 17.349
Additions
Disposals . =
Closing balance 17.39 17.39
Accumulated amartisation
Opening balance 16.58 16.58
Charge durirg the year
Disposals - -
Closing balance 16,58 16.58
Net block 081 .81
Intanglble assets as at March 31, 2024
Computer software Tatal
Gross carrying value
Opening balanca i7.349 17.39
Additions - =
Dispasals - -
Closing balance 17.39 17.39
Accurmulated amortisation
Opening balance 16.58 16.58
Charae during the yaar = 5
Cisposals - -
Clasing balance 16.58 15,58
it black 0.81 0.81




Panchshil Carparate Park Private Lmited
CIn; UT2S00PR20G5FTC1A213]
Mpies to tha Financial Statements

[l amounts are i ndiin Rupses millieng, uni=e othervise statoe)

Mete 7
Loans
Mon-current Current
March 31, 2025 Muwch 31, 2034 March 31, X025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considersd good -atar
intar-corporate desesits {Fefnr note helow end pote 33 and note | - - 145 L7878
Tatal Loans . - 214574 1, 767D
March 31, 2025 March 11, 2004
Type of Borrawer Amaent af loan Percentape to the total Ampunt of lsan Perientage to the totsl
outstanding Loans aututsnding Loans
Aromoter - E .
Dirmeter . 2 -
EITE - . . -
Ouhery 1TE2T L2 52% 25105 L4 dd4%
Aclated Farties 188527 EL12% 1.511.74 B5. 75
Detaily of cutstanding loans:
Name ol the lsanoe Mite of itorest Due date Tyt Warch 31, 2005 March 31, 2024
Loans to rekated parties —
wizliraft Realty Provate Limited 11.00% on demard LinsRcured - B BR.E2
Bal=iyad| Taclkaars Private Limited 10.50% On damand Linzecured FErE ] 31511
Panchahd Agalty & Develooers Private Limeted 3.7 Qr damand Linzecured ang 27 2414
Sohioha Private Limited 3.500k On demand Limagured 1.00155 -1 K]
Finest-¥n Musineas Fark Praats Lemated 1.50% On demand Lingecured 1581 7191
AT Jelire Saervices Privats Limited 3.75% O damard Unaseisrad 005 -
Laans to others
armath Resl E5inte Frivate Lomsted 12 508 On demanid Uimecured 168 I8 101.0%
Simgpahar Homes LLP 3.75% an demand Urnesureg 10820 #
Colgman Logalica Private Umited 1200 dn cemard Limecured SO0
Motes
a. Reder mote 43 fof dotails mgarding wimation of loens by tness partes dUring th yoar
bs, Managamnt belleves that for the gurpese af compliarce with Sectisn 195 of the Cornpanses Act, 2013, the Compary is considerad a& an infrastructure compsanyas per Schedhle vi of tha Companies Act,
2013 ap the Comaany is =ngaged in real estaz= developmeant and townsm, Accordingly, the prowismns of sechion 188{1] 10 sectan 188 (11) are not applicable to the Company
Mot B
Gther financia! asieis
Man-gurmnt Cusrant
March 31, 202% Masch 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Other bank basences |refor note 133) TES 500 583 1328
SRcunty teposit [at amort=ed oot £5.44 L1 8.1} 206 1]
Gawernmend tcentives [reler nate 41 and moverrent helow) - LA -
Total other financinl essots 7308 E108 B4 1183
Mousment in govarnment incemtives:
Current
narch 31, 2025
At the beginning af the year =
Acrrusd durng the year in the stateirent of Eefit and loss .4
Recevec during the year -
At the end of the year 9,79
Note § -Deferred ram
Particilars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
15R0D o3

Deletred Lo liabilities |refer note 501




Panchahil Corporate Park Private Limited

LN T2 RN2O0GPTEI42131

Mates to the Finendial Statements

|48l smourts are in IndiRn Supess milligns, uni=a othensmss stated)

Mote 10
Dthar aswety
Man-rurrent Current
March 11, 2075 tiareh 31, 2024 Warth 11, 2035 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered goad
Unhilled r=verua® 19880 20,70 .64 509
Capital advances .30 4.5 - =
Aclvances to suppliens - - 13,11 1500
Consitared deubtful - a.87 143
- ~ 1n.38 16.50
Lots! Allgwance for daubriul sdvaries - [[:E: 1 [L.a%]
- # ULl 15.00
Adwapm m srraloyess - 155 153
Prepaid sceises LR 1.3 1804 008
Taral other zzsets 122.08 AE,41 4735 A5.69

*The grealift iteludes base scusliiation me=rye ol INA 155,71 million {March 31, 2034; (N3 20.70 me

fimn) an accaont af ind A% 116,

fMeate 11
inuentories (walued at lower of cost and NRY]
Currenl
March 11, 2025 Miarch 31, 2074
Food, bevarag=s and other supnlies 3148 EL
Total invertstles 32.49 ELN
Note 12
Trade recetuahles
Current
March 11, 2025 Barch 31, 2024
Secured, conndered good 874 lam
Ursecured, consigered good
frarm melated parti=s [raler nose 33} B &
fram other §3.90 55:33
Credit impaed B0 5+
ng.47 =3 Rl
Ly ¢ Allgwencs for credst smpaired [1.87] [B.54]
Tatal Trata recelvables W1.65 84,70

N tradt= ar other recevable are due from direston or othes officers of the company mither gevarally ar jomaly with sny other permsn

For axplanations on the Company's credit ik managemens process « mefernote 37
Trade receluaties are Aon-ntooest bearmy and are gensmlly & @rem of 0-30 days
The nat carryirg valus of trade receivablos i contadeded o reasonadle sporosimation of fir value




Panchaill Corporate farh Private Limited

CIN: UIF28000M2005PTCI42131

feate to the Finandal Satemants

|AE amsunts are in indian Sups=s milliens, uniess athensise stined)

Moets 134
Cash ang caih equivalens
Currint
March 11, 125 Mareh 31, 2024
Cagh and cash eguivalinig
Batanoes with banks:
— On e ran] SCoUnts 11147 112,83
— Degoists waith onginal maiunty of =ss than 2 maaihi 180.50 .00
Cagh an hand [a -5 1.34
Total cash and cash equivalants 19247 IEAT
Note 130
Dther bank halances
P -ourrent Carrant
March 31, 2025 March 11, 2024 Mavch 31, 2025 March 71, 2022
Other bank kalance
Deponits with origiral matwray for more than 13 menthe® 755 500 5.8% Ikl
Deaousts with orlginal maturty far more than 3 menths but le1s than 12 manths® . 194.21 FRER.
T.465 540 200.10 pried )
aumunt dlsciosed under noa-currant financlal assets [refer note B} 17651 [5.00) |5.8] [13.28)
Total Othor bank balances : = 194,21 71301
=

* Duposs kept agmnat D5AA ani Dank puanantes of INR 154 45 millen [Mateh 31, 2034 INA 220,14 millign ],

Cash ot banks sarms mterest ol Boatiag rates based on daily bapk depant rates, Shari-torm daposits are ma
réquirgments af the Carraany, ard 2arm int=rest st the respersive shofl-t2tm depast rates,

de for varymg yoars of betwear ong day and thees months, depending o the immatdiate cash

Aoak g of financial assets carried ai ansriEed oost

Nan-turret Cuirment
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 hearch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trace recesvabies 8l&3 BaTa
Lodns - 114874 L7627
Cash and cash squivaients 39247 20217
iner bank balances - - =il.21 21801
Der inancal asets FEN HLIR 3554 1831
Totad financinl pssers corrind at smorlises (ost 7i.05 B 1,003.71 2.70.50
— R
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Pandaill Corpaw e Purh Frusie Limited

O U7 IO T Cia 1 L

Hatestnthe finarcial St men

iAl E=cunils s i ladkes Hupees mibony, unlien athenuose daied]

Mate 14
fguily shase apital
Bmieh 11, 2005 Maich 11, Ju3d
Aursarosd varey
D000 i 31, 300 100005 mpuity thases nf INE 13 sach 10,180 1ana
iwmsmiil. aiiligciibmil and fully paid-up shire il
25755 March BY, PO G PEST ikl iRt of LD anch aay L4y
a2 nan
|n] Recaneiliatiss ol 1hi shires iuisandog st te beginning s ot the end of the mpailng sl
March 11, FI3 Rt WL, 2T
Mo, af shares Al in Pdliun e &l thaeey Arzaunt bh Wflion
Erqueky wharss.
A Shed brgrning o B ke fn,F nan 519 -11%
mue of thanis dirng thi yee i
Buw bk of shares Gy e e | 424] |ooa)
Dapianding il tha end of ihe yese An, 15 aan ém .85

i) e gt attasted to equity shares

Fhe Company hisk enly bes class of squits shares having par ssiue of K3 10 gut dhans (Karch 31, J033 18R L1 par shan]. Each holder of soesy sbares & @nlillel i ane wmis perahise The (ompery Sanact dind il @8y dhavileridl darmy the puires) gilr. Tes
Catijiaity Nl dedaed sn mser dwnlend @ Ihe presous @ (elud nole 1501,

o 11 o vl el ol T Cvsgearyy, Shve Bt 1 ety Shats il B artitled dmsecete pemaieng et ol the Conpany. auf dat st ab ol amsunte f ey, The datrEUDOn wi| bew prosriias b e puinber of ey thiem hidd iy e
dnarmhrdin

|} Destaily of shazw=itiers Beiiling =are tan 5% ehasw in the Company

Betarch 11, FElS Mmrch 51, 2012
Wbl s e ma of duares % hutlidiog) i the el Vo, nl shares.
Wginie af phe gharenider
Uity ehmiies o IMA L0 s fally pald
EOM. Bnjessali inlrasirectors Brvals Lisstad WM L L] -
Pramuagar ludra Beally Bosste | mited : 0, 25200
4582995 24,197 it PERLE
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Panchshll Carporate Park Private Limited

CiIN: U72500PNZ005PTC142131

Notes to the Financial Stataments

{All amounts are in indian Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 15
Other equity
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Securities premium
Balanca as per the last financial stateaments 1,854.58 3,470.58
Add: Addition during the year -
Less: Utilised for buy back of shares . (1,615.93)
Less: Transferred to capital redemption reserve B 10.07)
Clasing balance 1,854.58 1,854.58

Retained Earnings
Balance as per the last financial statements 1,600.90 2.477.B5
Profit for the year 1,539.53 1,105.31
Other comprehensive income 145 1.74
Less: Uitilised for dividand (refer note 15.1 below| - (1,821.28)
Less: Tax on buyback of shares - (162.72)
Met surplus In the statemant of profit and lass 3,142.38 1,600.90

Capital redemption Reserve
Balance as par the last financial statements 012 0.05
Add: Transferred from securities premium - 0.07
Closing balance 0.12 0.12

4,997.08 3,455.60

Total other equity

Mature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium

Securities premium bs used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised anly for limited purposes such as lssuance of bonus shares In

aceordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Aetained Earnings
Retained earnings are the profits/{loss) that the Group has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers ta gane

ral reserve, dividends or other distributions paid

ta sharehalders, Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on definad benefit plans, not of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit

and Loss,

Capital redemption reserve

The Company bought back its shares in current year and in an earlier financial year, and in order to camply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,

the Company created Capital redemption reserve {Refer note 14)

Mote 15.1
Dividend represents interim dividend paid during the previous year of INR 37,325.16 per share.

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]




Eanchahil Curparate Park Private Limited
CIN: UTTHO0PN2005PTCI42 101

feotes to the Fianglal Stataments

{8l wrncamts arw in indian fupssy millisna unliss othersesa satnd|

feate 16
Barrowing: [at smoctised eovt)
Blon-turrent Carrieit
flasch 51, 1025 Bearrh 31, 7024 Mdarch 31, 2035 March 31, 2024
Term loans |secured)
Indian runee ioen 1 [secured) [Refer balow note 1) . 200.57 2,386.28 FETH i igras
Indias rnae baan 7 [secured) [Fefer below aste 1] 133590 1.895.32 37.52 a7
l&l? 4,182 & 39034 366,44
The afieve amount inglusles
Secured barrawings 355247 2,352 B0 350,34 15640
Unz=cored borrosings - - =
Total berrowings 3.532.47 o, 26,60 390.14 366,49

The smidtidty anplysis of borrowsnge s daclosed in nole 57,
All tgrm loans have gesn abined for e purpose for which they wers mesed

Note 11 inddian ripes loan 1
Tarm lpams fram Hargkong ard SHanghal Barkeng Comparation Limsted carries intstest Gnket Wit & Mant T 8ill. The oan = repeyable n 120 menthly nscallmants along with interest, Pram the dati of dabursement of
lear Lily 13, 2021). The foan = secused by securad by ||} Eaclutse chasge over the office spece end prescnionate land of tower 8 of Business Buy, Pune. {il} Eaclusha chargs ouer the lese= rentsl from ane 18Rant

|present and furure] of commoeial tower B 2t Sunness Sey, Pune

Nate 21 indian Rupes loan 2
Term loans from Hangkarg nd Shasghsi Bariisg Corparation Lmitad carries interesl inkad with 1 Month T 8ill. The losn s repayabis in 120 manthey installmants siang waith intefest lam the date af dishurssment of

fman (funt 05, 7023). The loan i securod by securad by |\ Seclusve charge over the office spece and praparticnane [and of towes & of Business Bay, Pune, (1) Esclusive chargs ayer the lasie rentsd frem ons tanart
{prasunt and future] of comemeszial tower A &0 Business 3ay, Pune

The Campany haz bear saretioned suwdraft B fwhich is 3 sub-Smit of teem josna) in siceas of INR e croes in aggregate fram Honghong and Shanghal Saniing Carparaticn Lmited an e badie of seurity af carmant
AEth of 1ha Company, However, thie bans ke waived off requissment of sabmerieg quartsrly statsments snd ho quartary returns/ statements are aot reguired to ba fded with such Rerka by the Coenpany

Hirk aEhe cansas cartein dubt covenants retasing tn imileban an indestednm, dedend declarstan; selag/eaigrag/morgagingidisposs any Flesd Ass=ts chargsd to Bant, etares: rates on monies boremied Fom

Dersctory/Pramalony Ralatiess e, maintemece af misimdm DSCR ratn and LTV @3,
The Campany haz sntisfie all the dear covurants pruscribed in the terms of Bank loen and bes sat dafaulted onany loans payshle

Sdarch 11, 2005 March 31, 2074

Changes in Eahilities arising fram nancing activities

Dpenirg Balance ol oormowings A fas. 1o 501037
Agd
Aroceeds from borroresigs 2 2.000.00
#Azcrual of Int=res e0e 44875
Lins
Aepayrment of barrosangs 71130 2,350.15
Payment af Mterest FnaT ASLET
Citminijf Balanee of borrowings snnmn 4.548.10
For changes in liabilit=s arisimng fram financing activibes Dus to sahEd fele fone 48
Kot 17
Oither limandial labilities
NM-WEH_ITI Currant
Warth 31, 2025 Warch 31, 2024 tarch 31, 2025 Marrh 31, 7024
A¢ amortised cist
Jacuriry doposits B2A BT i7a.32 S00.5% 634,69
Ernployes relatud liab:ines a ] 53 512
Hetarbon mansy . I7i0 1740
Bpyetle foe prapey, glant asd egepment - EN 74
Taul fimancial liabilites f.riv 676.32 552 Kb 5A.15
Mate 1
March 31, 202% Bdarch 31, 2024
1120 1429

- Totsl cutstandiig duns af mero enmearnees and small erterprizss [WEVIE]
Total outstanding dues of erediten ather than mcro enterpres end 759 100,54
wmall metsrarises

Tutal trate payables i an 115.23
Trede payabie o related parmes |refer note 53] a7 488
108,78 11015

ritst bearirg and re generallf on tems af 3-50 dey.




Panchihil Carparate Park Privats Lmitod

Citi: UF2800PN20GSPTC182131

Mates 1o tha Fnardal Staiements

(Al amounis are i Indian Rupess millioed, enl=tl olherws stetsd)

Nate 19
Other lighilities
Han-Carroat Current
March 31, 2025 Maech 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contract Liahifty
Advance from custorrers® . 2072 2i4m
Inenme recalved in advance® " - . 1an a4z
Oithere
Celesred reyenue OT.7E 18530 81 85 7127
ERLCE daferrad payabie |refer note 30 and mavement below] 5156 1EL96& 105.99 11344
TS & smatuwinry duus payalis - * 1258 1503l
Wal= sdced tne and worin contriet tae payakis - * 171 357
Gocs and services tax poyabie . 3646 RS
Dthar labbpas - . f.08 481
Total nther liahillthes Fig.44 T2 H-.-'Eﬂ 450 94

*  Advance fram customsars s secapnaed wisan pegmint is feceivid befora the refated parformance obligation is setafed. Thin includes advances recefyeil Tram the customar twares Aeamsfood &
beverage/ather tereres, Bevenue s recopnized cres the gerfarmaencs obligation i met s 2a rsam itay [ wbe af facd and beverage [ pravivan of other hospaality Servo=s. Parlarmance obligatons a@
mtitfied within 1 perad of 12 months. Sevenus recagresed durng the yess schides INR 10,51 million (March 31 2024 INR 32 55 million) from amounts induded in contract habibibes st the begnning of
thig s

** |meiiches membarshoa fee recaivad in adyance from customers | members 23 part of membership program afbered from time to tme, Performineg obligations am satitfied within a period of 12 montha
Nawein recognesid during tha wear inciucias INR 0.32 mullan {March 21, 2034: IKA 0.3& mdban| from amountz mcluded & cantract hslalities gt the beginning of the yean

Movamant in EPCG deferrad paysble Mireh 31, 2025 htarch 31, 17024
At the baginning of tha yoar 0540 Ll L
Relessed to (e statement of profit snd leae (i (11845
At the end of the year 157.55 295,40
ot= 20
o cisrrent Current
March 31, 2035 March §1, 2074 March 31, F2% March 31, 2024
Employes hensfit obligntianm
Provision for lesve encashiment 2119 Pl 0% Lae
Prowamion far graterhy TI5 &.06 143 3,13
Total pravidurs 0,48 LY 12 200
Mote 1
Current tan lahilivy jret)
March 11, HIZS March 31, 2024
Eurrsar tan hanilinips {rat of Tax asset af (NS 395 35 millicr, March 31, J024; IN§ 42758 millian] ErEeal 75.13
Tatal current tas Bahility {net) Tl T5.13

[THIS SPALE HAS INTENTIOMALLY BEEN LEFT BLANI(]
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Panchahdl Corporate Park Privats Limited

CIN: U T2H00PN2O0SFTEIAT1E]

Nates to the Financial Statoments

(Ail asesnts dre i Endeen Rapees midlans, unless otherwise iated)

hate 22
Revgnue from oporations
Ve edeel Year erded
_ Barch 31, 2025 March 38, 2024
fevenue fram rontal incamid 132855 2,176.02
Amvenue from contracts with oestomoers
|, Services transfermed over time
Erom commercipl lpsing
Mamtsnanes and parking chargiis §1.63 4355
Fram holol apurations
Hpam mooms TIETT 3avob
Otjar batel services ctuding Banguat income and memisarbin fee 1778 13634
515,58 TH3.4%
1, Gispels transferred ot & paiit in time
Frum tammercial leasing
Revarme from sale of construciion matenssy
Serap Sale pse 11
£qout Sade 053 115
From hatel sgetatiens
Sale of food and bewerages T47.51 B77.09
TARRL BTAIA
Tatal rpvsnun fram contracts with customers L6632 1,45LET
CIElar oparating reveniie
Goyernrient incontives |r=fer note 44| L -
Total rawenus from oparatians 1,072.65 3,E00 75
Type of goads or srvice Year untod Year eniied
March 31, 2035 Earch 31, 3024
Aeweriue frem commercial [B2ing 13E1 M 112773
Heymnuie from hotel eporations LE9L57 1,381 03
4,072.66 !gﬁ
Neconillition of the ol recognised in the statgment of profit & o with the contracted price
Yo onaed Weor ended
Bfarch 31, 2025 March 11, 2034
Nevsrniil &5 par contracted orics 1,687.62 LA53.06
Aduskrments
Diszount 2330 |31}
Ravanus fram contrect with Gistamars 156432 1,431.87
D‘H!ﬂrlp‘tlﬂ rewRiviE rReognition
Year saded Year onided
Manch 71, 2025 March 31, M4
Rewinus recognisad over o gevicd of Tme §15.68 745
Apverus recognived &t @ paintof time Fas Gl Sz
1.064.32 14317
Contrect halancas
Woar ended Woar ended
Mtarch 31, 2025 fiarch 11, 2074
Balances &t tha bagmning of the gear
Trade R=cemnbiss 4631 B2
Conreract inbilitg « Advances from custamans 18:31 1550
Raloncoe at the end of thee yeae
Trude Recevakies il &8 4631
Comtracs linkility - Advanoos from custormens 1768 1851
Transaction grice sllocated to the r serformance obligstion
Year gned Year ended
March 31, M35 Klarch 31, 2022
Expected 19 be racognitod a3 reveriue aver the peet one year TS 1851
Fypected ta be recognined &6 ravenus peyand the ner one yeal =
1766 19,51
Motn 33
Cther Incoma
Woar ended Woar endesd
March 11, 2025 Miarch 31, 2024
Interost incame on
- Bark deposits 7z ILT4
Intar coraotets depost [refer mote 33) 16752 .55
- Others 4.7R 1156
mnoa? 1655
Dther nan operating incore
et gzin on disgiesal of proserty, plant e squipmoents . L79
Prafit an sale ol current imees b .19 15718
o angar regured wnsten back 62 L1632
13T, 75 11584
arme Q15 3
331.73 54418




Panchahil Carporate Park Privaty Lmited
CIM: UTTHOPNIO0SFTC142151
Hotos to the Finandal Statements

(Al smaunts are in indine Aupaes millione. wnlkss ctherwe saied)

Mote 2
Cast of food, beverages and other sperating supplien
Yoar emtled Ve gisded
#nrch 31, 2135 Mrch 51, 2024
Cast af food and Bewerajes consumed
imannhory ot this Baginning of the year 3471 LT
Add: Purchases i 2003
7.5 13138
Less: imventany at the 2rd of tha year [ErEs ] | 3471}
Cost of feod and bevirages cansamed 21544 196.67
Cet af Corstriction material soid e
Totsl cost of food, beverages snd other opersting supplies 115,71 18667
Mate 25
Empleyes bonefit edpeiiies
Yeue andesd Yaar arded
Bdarsh 31, 2025 Wiarch 31, 2024
Salereey, wagns and bansis 412 155013
Cominmirtion ta prosident ans other lunds (§ B} 1023
dratutty =xpenias (rofer rote 33 .35 150
Gralt weliare experaed a7 84 3814
_ris 236.56
Kue 26
ithir onpunsas
Vear anded Waar endeid
arch 1, 2035 Mllﬂ:h_!.l_.ml
—— YT = 1E1a
Antes and taaEs 5082 L1415
InsUrance chadges 10,68 1154
Houssbleping =vpersal 40,74 5=
Mopairs and malntonance
Flart and maelsnary 4371 RE.O
Buddings L] 5634
Vehucle 053 el
AL 175 [EhrE ]
Advertining and salea promaticn 2574 T8
Travelling atd coreyvanze 1147 180
Trirting and sletanery ifi 10
L=gal amd profeationil fees 7383 5LI6
Lisér, laundry and cleaning a0.08 3065
Interiet. telighans and othir aperateg sapplies Bao 8517
Augditars' rermaniratan (refer aote 2501 Selow} 180 LES
Othes sxponses inodents| te leswing activity [nat) 373 LLAL
Asset manapeshent chages EFEL 3.2
Acryaliy leas AL AR HE]
Managemesit feas 2T 216X
fscuifity nuperses 1E26 HL ]
Arcaision lor doubtful recewshies ind ocvances [ erd] 15
Detit balance wotten off - 232
Lois an dacarded of proparty, plant and squpments 151 -
Exchanpe= load {Fatl 218 143
SR Eananses |rafer rate 256.07 neiow] 150 ln=
heellaneous expenies 2R07 11.18
THA.TH TINS5
Naote 26,01
Autfitory’ Remunaratian
Voo ertled Yenr pnded
eanrch 31, 025 March 11, M124
Az mudibar
- Audit fee LE 1.84
« Remmbursament of sipe reed - .01
1 1L.E5




#amchahil Corporate Park Private Limited

CIN: UTZH00PNIO0SFTCI42190

Motes to the Financial Statements

|All smousts are [ ndian Apoes milkans, unless othervee Deed)

Naote 26,00
Details af 3R espemditure:

A5 por Saction 135 of the Comparies Act, 2017, & corparste sacal rasponebility [C53) committae has besn farmad by the Company. The erees for C50 aetiviTes are the activities mmantioned in thi Sohedule Vi of the

Comaanies Act, 1013 Amount spent during the vaar an gctivites wdiich ire soaciied in Schedule Vil of the Caompanies A1, 7035 are ax menboned helow

Yo anled Year endad
Bfarch 31, 2025 March 11, 2074
{n) Ameant requéres to ba woant by the Company during the year knd approved by the Beard of Drectars i1.50 10,60
[fa] Ameunt af gapenditure incurmed durmyg 1he yeer
7] Eonstrstionfssgumiben of any acsed - %
|%] On ournos=s athar than (i} akows [ir cnsh) 1= 10.60
[e] srorttall a1 tha end of the year £
[d] tofat of prevwaws yean shortinil ' y
(] reasan far thertall Ma A
{F] mate of C50 activities
- Comtniuman 1 chartable trust [Educaticnal & med=al sxpenuss) 215 10,60
{gh detasts of refated party trensactioni, @ 8. contritunnn to e trutt controlled by this comparsy o retston o CER Rehet not= 33 Rzfer rot= 33
Exaansizure as per relewant Accouwnbifg Sandard,
Mo IT7
Deprecintion expenss
¥oar unadesd Yoar ended
March 31, 2025 March 11 2074
Dapeapanan af property, plant and sgupment [relay o 48] ELER EoR.A0
Depreceton af imvettment roperty |mefar note 54§ 11350 18712
M9 A% YA
Mota 38
Fimanco costs
vear anded ¥oas ended
March 31, 2025 March J1. 2024
Irierest Exnenze
- on hank faclites Imos 450,37,
- an finanzial snstraments st amartived eesl EZ 15 1328
- g ST Lax 107
- on athers 0ol 0a:
44725 A52.25
Oither bormwing codls
Bank charges oEg 1310
i pEST.]
Total finarice cost 4611 51535
il ———
Mot 28
Earmimgs per share [LP%]
Tha foliowing reffects the pralit and shares dats used inthe basicard diluied ENS cemghsanans
Particulars Year entded ‘Woar ended
March 31, 2035 arch 31, 2034
Numerator for basic and dilnted EPS
At profic atier tea {in millicr) 153953 1105 51
Denaminator for hasic and diluted EFS
Wighted averags riumber of squity dkases i ealeulanon of basic and diluted EP5 (inoaod.) 48, 795.00 F4E17.47
31.551.02 20,162 54

Banks anel dilsted sarnings per share of face value of INA 10 nach

THIS SFACE HAL BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




Panchzhil Corporate Sark Prvate Lended

CIM: LT Ra00PN2008PTCLA2191

Matis b the Financlil Statemirts

(Al ermoanty are in Irdun Aupess modhom, wnless athenwise stated]

Mote 5
|ncame tae
The mar tnmpenerds sl incame tes sepemes for fhe year snded WMech 31 7025 ane Maech 31, 8324

Stanaman of profivand lows section

Veur endded Year endeil
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 3024
Current income taa:
Curmet mcome e charge EEEN:H 45631
Adjustrmur for cument tas of pravious yaars {5586 150
Dafarred ta SL.57 iTs
Total currnmt tax espensn #4035 as0.AT
O Section:
Deferred tai relsted ta temrs recogresed in 000 durng the year [§ ML) 0Ty
ncame tax esounsn raponed inthe saiemaent of profl or fos 44140 450,16
Reconziliation of tax exgorse and tho accaunting profic multiplivd by India’s domestic tas rate far the yesr saded
fear andod i il
Marth §1, 2025 March 31, JU24
Accounting prodit belorn tas LFF.aE L556.18
Computed tas 2apenag
Af Ircha’s stntubory incorme e race ol 35 168% (Merch 31, 3024 20 12%| ABE 3G A53.18
Adjustrments for
Sfntmant in cumenb i on chenge in tas e an aceount of changs i ias regims {SE.S5) L0
limpact af changu in tas rets on apaniig dafined e {11.85) B
Enparsas pal daducfible for tan purpase 1082 160
Cther * (&1l
At the sffective Income tan rate of 22,258 |Warch 11, 20047 20.97%)
|cornie tan espenss reported v the statement of prafit snd koss 44140 450,16
L1 of Balance sheet suctian
Baiancn shent
Particulars Au gz Masch 31, 2025 Asar March 31, 7074
Deferred oy amet
Brovisran for gratuity Ris| s
®roveizan for bonus L iLa=
Peowsuan for keave shcashment [L11) [N
Browewan for bad ard doubdtul debts [233| {257
|58 (24
Dedarred tax Uabilty
Acculersie dearenntien end amemsatics for e glatsae 1T 554
Discauning of secunty deposit 5203 TaEy
Defarred inpams smpack on secunty depesi 2 amortined oot {50 31) L1
Linbifod revenus PR 503
Othsm 0.a7 i
154,19 111}
Net dederred tan lability 158.00 10538
Rt dafarred taw Kahility recognised in Salance Shast 158.00 105,38
= ===

The Company offsets taw assets and lahildes & and only o i Fas.a legaly andorcaahla right ta ot off carrent tas aasets and curment ta lixhilies and the cetarred s assets and deferred @y kabites ralate to meome taes

levied by e same e authartty,

[THIS SPACE HAS INTENTINALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK]




Fanchshil Corporate Park Private Limitad

CiN: UTZH00PNIO0SPTT1A213]

Hates ta the Financiel Statements

(Al amounts are in indian Bupees millions, unless otherwne stated]

Mate 31

Segment Information
The Board of Dwrectors i the Chief Operating Decizan WMakar (COOM} #nd manitars the oparating sesults of it business units separatety for the purpoie of making decsions about resource allocation and

performance aptsasment. Segment porformanes i eveluamd hased on proficar los and & meEesured canalstsntly with profit or oz in the Financisl Statements. The Camaeny's financing [includmg finance costs
and finance income=| i managed on o Compary basis and v not allocated to aperating segmmente. Further, certmin Current Lases, delerred tasss and cedtain financia| ass=ts and liabiliti=s ar= alsc manage=d an a
Compeny batis are not alkacated to opareting segments

The Cormgasy deet nol kave ey noo-current investments and sny indestment m assocates and |eintvmrtures. Thare are no non-currant fimanciad 2ssets, incomea tas and delerrad @ assets outside ndia.

Far managamant purpsses, the Company il ergansed into businesa unds bated on Lz products snd seroces and has two repartable segments, ot foliows
(1] Commercial leasing - Commessial leanng includes pevenus from leating operatiom compraing of l=ase rentals from the propertes green under lease,
[11] Hospttadity - Hospitality inchides revanus fram hotel aperstion comprise of revenus from sals of room, food and beverages and allied servces retated to batel coeratian

Year eithed 11 March 2026-
Particulars Commerchal Leasing Hatel Tatal
Hevenue
External customars 238070 165155 4,072 565
Total revenus 138070 L9568 40720
Expenses
Cost of taad, bevereges and oiher ooperatng suoplis: - {31570 1215.70)
Ernaloyes benelits =upans= . (370.55) 127065}
Depreciation and amoris=ption sspers [215.43) [CEFE-2] (ESRO2
Cthvar operating expenses {50.12) (5&9.70| (e ]
Segment Profit LEER1A 216 HEJ‘E
Fagmant-aneets 421088 331635 T53T.11
Total Assots 4, 210.86 132626 Iim-ll-
Segrmenl hahilitiey 1417539 i3 a3 1LI56 72
Tatal Liabilities 181789 I3853 LI5ETR
Deprociaton 215 471 417 5% HEEO4
Capital Expenditure during the vear 71 T7E T18T 304 64
Year anded 31 March 2024
Particulars Commercial Leasing Hotel Total
Aewemis
Externel cudtomers 1,130.23 Lzg1.02 381135
Total reveris 1.330.73 LINLOER 1,611.75
SER R e
Exprnses
Cost of food, beverages and other ooeraling supalies . |19E.ET) |15 AT
Srmpoyes benshl sapense - {236 35) |#36.595)
Degrecation and irmortmatan expame {A%E 24) #13.06) |65 .52)
Other cperating espenses {150.04] 516:51) |TOE55)
Segmant Profit I._TE".TI:I 17.62 10153
Sagment axu=ts 503290 3,529.51 856820
Total Assets 5.039.70 1.529.51 8,565.20
= 2 s sttt
Saprmert liahilities 18341k 243,43 148357
Total Labilities LEM.16 InE.l] 2,283.57
15648 23 L5

Depreciatads
Capital enzepdilure dunng the year 148 83 Tds 15630




Panchshidl Corparate Park Private Limited
CIN: LirtonPNI00GEPTCI42131
Motes to the Financlal Statements

(Al ameunty ane in Indian Aupegs milliors, unless athensme siated]

Reconcliations to amounts reflected in the linandal statements

A, Aeconcilaiton of proft

Barch 31, 2025 Bdarch 31, 2024
Segment prufil 2,306,765 1LANL&3
fimance incorme 18003 3555
Othar financs coars (34814} {BO5-85)
Unallocated sspenses {15748 |L& 80
Unallpcated pesma 21 XI5
Profit before tax L5757 1L.6%6 18
L —_—

* |nciucles pagunises towards corparats socal respongbetiy, unaliscdtad legal ant professional fees and other corpardie exanies,

=+ ircbuclad income Framm nterast mcome, sthir rentsl mcome and ather ircome

I Aeconcillation of aasets

Ntarch 31, 2025 March 31, 124

Segment aperating assets THarAL 0,563,240
Tax zsaet |met) . i
Lo&nis 21,1454 LierTe
Other unalioentid 3588 Lagd,&7 240,98
Total #ssets 1114732 10,572.47
C. Reancllistion of labiliies:

March 31, 2025 Blarch 31, 2024
Seamant ppurating liabilizies 1,058.72 2,283.57
Daferred tas lability [net] 15800 10537
Income tan lalslity |mat) 52313 75.12
Besrronadings 1,934 54 4,838.30
Othar unallocated lintilisies BE7 1402
Tatal Hahifties _EEIH.E 111639
D, Reconcliation of degreciatkon expenditure:

March 51, 2025 March 31 2024
Segment depreciation edponditure G5A.0a G353
Crchar unallocated ssgendture 51,35 a.54
Total degresiation JoE a9 Gra.na
E. Reconciliation of capital espenditine:

March 31, 2035 Mnrch 31, 7024
Sepmint capltal espenditure 390 44 156,30
Ozher unallocated mipenditure 137 =
Total capital expendituie SEL91 156.30

There weie 2 custamess in the comemersal leasing segment (March 31, 2004 3 custamers] which &x

caood 10% of thi teas! reversue of the Company amointing to INR-LET0,95 malion [Marsh 31, 04 iNA

150130 millizn), Farther, revonuns from ssternal customes are entraly attributakly 1o the Compary's country of demicls.
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(ALl amenisnts are g Indsan Rupess millions, uniss atherwive stated)

HNote 32

Disclosure plrsuant to Employee benefits

A, Defined banefin plang

The Company operates a defined benafit gratuity plan, Under the gratuty plan, @very employes who has campleted atlsast five years of senace els 3 graturty on departursat 13 days af nst drawn salary Tar
aach compbated yoar of service. The sehama is nan-funded.

There are nd alan amendments or curtaiments during the years presented

The disclosure in respect of the defined Gratulty Plan sre glven below:

Dafined Benefit Plans
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024

prasent value of funded obligations B.58 684
Fair Walui of Plan Assets %
net {Asset)/Liability recognised B.68 .84
Current 143 o8
Mon-currant 125 5.66
Movements in plan |izhilities

Year ended Year anded
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of obilgation as at the beginning of the year 84 538
Lizbility transfarred infacquisitions
Current sendice cost E] 351
Interest Cost/[Income) 0.45 038
Past service cost =
Transfer In fOut -
Return on plan assats excluding amourts included in net finance i
Actuanal {gain/loss erising from changes In Tinancial assurmption: 0,12 004
actuarial {zain)/loss aricing from demographic assumptions - -
Actuanal {gain)/loss srising from experience adjustments {187) (2.48)
Employer contributions - -
HBenelit payments 10.B5)
Total 8,58 684
Statement of Prafit and Loss
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Yoar ended Year anded
Particulars Warch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current sarvice oost i 351
Interest cost on defined banefit obligation 0.45 a.39
Transfer |n fOur & -
Expactad raturn on plan assets
Net benefit expense 4,25 31.90
Remeasurement gains | {losses) recognised in OC1
Remeasurement gains / (losses) recognised in OCI M:::l: ;':'::E m:::: ;":;:u
Change in firancial assumations 012 .04
Changze in demographic sstumption . a
Exparience gains / (losses) [L87) |2.48)
Met {incame]/expensz for the year recognised In OC1 {L75) [2.44)
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(Al amounts are m ndian Ruepees milions, unless othenize stated)

Assumptions

with the ohysctive of prassnting the plan ssets and plan kabilities of the defined benefits plans st thesr fair value on thi balancs

sheet, ansustipbions nder ik A% 19 are st by reference to mafkel oonditions at the waluation date.

Thie sgnilicent actuarnal sriurmabons ware as follows:

Far Hotel operations
March 31, 2005 Warch 31, 2024
Discount rats B.50% TA0%
Future salary incroasa B.00% 8,00 |
Eapected rate of refurn an plan assets oD% .00 |
Hate of Employes Tirnawver 40 40000%
Martzlity Rate During Emplayment IALAHZO12-14) ult WALN| 2002-34] ult
A quantitative denstivity analysia for significant assumption is s shown befow:
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sensitivity lewel [imcrease)/decrease in dafined Sensithvity level (increasa]/decreate in defimed
herefit obligation [Impact] for benelit obligation (lmpoct) for
tha current year tha current year
[scount rats 1% Increass |8.88} 1% incren {&.GH)
¥ ducreace . R:ul 1% decrease J
Future salary increaie 1% [nereane LR} 1% Incresasa 6,93
195 ducrmace (156G} 1% decrease {6,711
‘Wirthdrawa| rite 196 meraase (B.RE] 1% incranse |8.83)
196 dectedae 0.69 1% decieie &84

the senaitivity Anakysis above have besn detarmined based on & methad that satrapolates the impact on efined henalit obligation as a result of reasanable changes in iy Bssumptions oLEUmming atthe end
of the reparting genod, The sensitivly analyis are based on o chadge i a significant ssuimption, keeaing all other #aumphions caristanl The sensitiaty anakyss may nob be rapresenistive of an actual
chasge i thee dufined benefit obligation as it s onfikely that changes in assumpbons would accur in izolation fromm one anather,

The fallawings are tha expected hitre banatit payments far the definad beefit ohligation:

Dischosure pursuant to Employes banelits Barch 31, 2025 March 31, 2022
Wilhin the nest 12 manths aia
Batween 1 snd 5 yaars 413
Beyand 5 yEars 3.0
Totsl papscted paymedits i
Weighted average duration of defined plan obligation in years [based on disenunted cash Rows)
Mgrch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Eratuity 362 A
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Motes to the Financial Statemaents
[l amaunts are in Indian Aupees millions, unless atherwise stated)

MNaote 344

Leases

a. Company as a lessor

The Company has enterad into operating leases on its investment property portfalio consisting af commercial space along wit

Finterior fit-outs such s furniture and fixture, air

conditioness, stc. These lzases have terms of batween one and seven years Some af the leases include 3 clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on @n periodic

basis. Thers are no restrictions imposed by the l2ase agreement. Rental Income recognised by the Company during the year |s Rs. 2,328.55 million {March

2,176.88 million). Future minimum rentals raceivable under non- cancalisble operaling |eases are as below:

Futura minimum rentals receivable under non-canczllable operating leases are, as follows:

31, 2024 : Rs,

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

182644
b,02544

Within ons year
After one year but not more than five years
Abowve 5 y2arg

1.045.83
2,579.20

Mote 348
Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
a. Capital commitments

Particulars March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Estimatad amount of contracts remalniag to be executed on other account and nat provided for [net of 57.55

advances)

63,659

b. Contingant Lisbilitles
There are no contingant abilities agalnst the Company as at and for 2ach of the yeirs ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Mate 35
Particulars of unhedged foreign curroncy expasure as at the balsnce sheet date
March 31, 2025
Armount in foreign curmency Amount [n INR
Payablos
[FL1a] 0.1s 13.58
March 31, 2024
Amount in foreign currency Amaunt in INR
Payablos
013 1116

uso
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Note 36

Falr values

Sat put below is 4 comparison, by cless, of the carrying amounis and fair valise of the Company's financial instruments a5 of March 31, 2025

Particulars Amortiszd Cost Eair value through profit and lass  Total carrying value Tatal fair walue

Fimancinl msets
Trade and other recekenbilan BL A5 - BL&S 31,65
Cash and cash equivelents 15247 . 142.47 1\ a7
Qtises bank balances 1o 21 - 10421 184,21
Loans 214574 . 218574 21,1457
Other financial assets 162.73 - 162.73 16173
Tatal 2976.B0 - 1,976.80 2,575,680
Financlal llabilities
Anrrowiligi 3.942.B1 - 1,942 EL 3 a2.81
Othar finsncial [lakilites 1.357.73 - 1,357.73 135173
Trade payables 109.45 * 109.49 104845
Taotal 5,410,008 . 5,410,03 541003

St oul balow is @ comparison, by class, af the mying smounts and fair walue of the Company's financial instruments as of March 31, 2028

Particutars Amortised Cost Fair ualue through profitand loss  Totad carrying value Total fair valua

Financial assets

Trade and other roceivebles Ba.78 % BA.TH Ea.7R
Cash and cash eguivalents 0337 - 203,17 0317
Othoer bank balancos 213,01 - FAENI} | 21101
Loans 176173 - 1,763,723 L7679
Other financial ansets 83,71 - B3.71 83,71
Tatal 2327 46 - 21,347 46 2347 .45
Financial liabilitios

Horrowings 4,649.10 - 4,649.10 4,649,110
Othar ancial labiities 1,332.47 - 1,33237 1.332.47
Trads payahies 11523 - 11523 115.23
Tatal 2,005 B0 - B,096.00 6,098,100

The mamagement assessed that cash and cash eguivalents [inchedng bank Balances|, trade recekyatilay, loans, trage payabies and ather current financul assets and [labilitses approximate e canmrying
smaunts largely due to the short-term maturitias of thess mstruments, Thie fair valuss af the fimancial asets and liabilites are incluged at the amount ot whieh the atrument could be exchanged i a
eubraal transaction betwesn willing patties, ather than in @ foroed of liguidaton sals. The fattowing methods and assumptions were usad o astimate the fair values :

Eair walue hlerarchy
The fallawing tabile provedes the lak value mapiurement Hierarchy of the Compeny's financial instriments measured at fair value aftes initizl Frcognition:

Ouoted prices in active  Significant obsarvable Significant unobseruable

Dt chepyneen Faiabs mariets {Level 1) inputs [Lave! 2) inputs {Level 3)
Assets for which falr walun are discesed
nwEsliment proparty ftarch 11, 2025 16,675,712 15,675.72
iwestment progerty March 31, 2028 15,805.70 - 1580570

Thars were no transiees betwesn level 1, levil 2 and lsvel § during the y2ars gnded March 31, 2025 and March 31, 024
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Hote 57

Financial risk mashgameni abjacties asd palides

the Compenmy's princmed Bmancal kabsdities comprse trade pables, Botresiiis and wcariy deposas The main perpase al theas finencial lililibies 1= 1o FBrarce the Comgaiy's gosstition ainl io supoort i ooeratom. The Campany's
printipal (nanial svues incides evestrmenty, trode recewaldes and ciss ape cash equivalests that detive dirscty [ty 15 Dperations.

Ttz Compaiy is xpsei bo rarkst pish, credit sk snd Leuidity rivi The Beard of Deecioes svkees and agrues policies for mansging sech ol these sk, whick ar sumerasised below

Market rish

Bsraed Tisk o fie w20k that Bho faa lue of fubare cash flows of & fnancal inktrsmang il lluctuate hecawss of changss in markes prices. Markst prices comprise thres Vs od ol inbenet rate rik, oarmmey rak amd ather price ik
such a3 gguay gocs e and cammosiy prce ik Financal sstrements affectes by maskin dsk scludid bistrssibgs and mvesiments

This seiisibrity anabpsss = the lollmwng sectans relate o the poaton oyl Maich 31, 2035 snd March 31, 105

Ths sewsitivity analysis R beea prepared an the e (hat 1 amount of nut delit ard the rato of fissd-io Bostng mterpst retes of the detit are all constant ay ot Sarch 31, 2075 ard March 11, 1004

Casmmadity Price rith

Thi Compatty does mat comy any sgadicant cenmnlite soice rith

Intereat rabe risk
ribmpest vt Fiah o8 the Fisk It the fairvalie 2 et cask Ny ot 3 financal nmsmens wi| flucnabe e of dhangos 0 markst intersst rtes. The Compam’s deiisund 1 1h ssk ol drarges o maskel misret tates alates

arimardy ta the Compary's king-lsrm dabt atilgamns wih feating mierest cies Th Campany has not hedped 4 expanirn t Tuctuation o the syiemest raiee on accolind of the invignilicam impact of any changus in the mmere ein
b 1% Dsnta Bk

Intavess rat= mEmsitivity
i Inllaeving tahle semioastrates he yensitiviy T o fessanably gosilile changs i stared retes o= that aortion of nans snd boerowings affscte thi Camgany gratic bubcre tas 1 alfechesl (hoogh the impact as Flnanng rate

burrmwegs, a5 Balles
Hink rasnagemant- interest rate sensitivity tahle
March 11, 1035 Wiarch 3L, 2024
Increase § decressein  Effect on polil bedore increxse f decreasedn EMI0) oo profia before:
Basls points tam Hails paints tow
IR v il [7157) 850 (1519
=50 1151 = 20 1%

Cradit risk
Cradit rith & the risk that @ coumierparty will nal et i abigatam simier = fnantml siisenn al cusiamas conuracy, lesding to @ hrarcil luss. Thu Campany s seposed o credit 1ok Froen W5 opseaning dcinaiis | o maily trade
seepiaiihiig) and fram ity linaicing actdives, wchiding depaiibs wl bank, 8 sy, investment in utunl et ded athey financial instruments

Tranle recehvatiles

Cussames craifi s 1y manajud by th Compam's svtaldished sobey, procedures and comtrol relating io o cradit ik manag it Far the Fid [mase inssoie, the Lilliag 18 dore o adwance e ol the eginting al tis momh
sl for varmbibe e snrd and e1lior sainzanance chages the cedit perod gprovided ol 7he 10 days. Thus thene are no mamr thide rcetnl balantes outstanding at the yrar el

i e al hestitality busemess, eredit ek i maseged by vl busssss onil uwhject 1o the Company's sstabilishait poScy, o ocsdures and control relating b exnilibrink man Creditauiabty ol @ dustimse (v anumed
s an an sstensive credit reting ecnrecand ded indidual credic inies aee dedined i scoordarse mth i sdsiment D ding ¢ bl are regularly moniioned

i el esposiste 1 creci risk 4t the sempling dale i The arnyng vahee of sach dass of lnaresl suat disdowed o nobs 16

The Campainy aubsssss 41 sadh paporting dete whether a trade reoesabily or 3 groug of race recowables o ) i The i yeanggnreid lifasime ponected crdit oo Toe all irade recenmbius that do net caistiute & financieg

Sraisacsian st il ape dus for e thae e monihe The sepecied cedit kakis des madistod at an amount egual te 11 manth sapecind ol [giass ar ok an amoint egusl b i Gl wapucied credit oases of the gredit i an
1he trage mcesvabivs has nressed vgediantly unes sald suagndion’ The Compamy uses 8 practical seadiint by computing the expected cradd b ollonares oy e reotvables heoed an @ rovsion matrs

Particutsr ok dise withsin LEO days & 160 dawe to 368 dave 0 Mdpreinan 365 doys®  More tham 164 days® Tatal
March 11, 2025
Estenatinid total grods carmging ammen IF57 A4 45 ral 1104 14 a0 48
ELCL - Simpbfied spproact . {1y g 759 {n.a3}
et earmying amitiisi fLE ] 43.7a L] 104 . niid
Particulary fent du= wrifhin 180 days & 150 days to WES oy ¥ Mape than 355 doys® bdore tham 165 ieye® Total
march 31, 2024
Estimaed ik gross carrying smmn| 14 n 5536 7o 1oG TE 532
ECL - Simpll{ed spproack a |=Rerd] (LR {7 BH (L&}
Wt cazrying amousl Ld.nn 5543 aar 106 - | DR

¥ Peowisian v made lor rece-vabies whmre recovery 1§ comsalene doubee rrespece of dis dite, Whene a0 amunt s oitstazsting for mede than 385 days the Company wsaly prousied los thy sanin unleee theie i chear
wrnrhiilily af fncersiy
A Peoviian i mady even fur pases wise gt f outstandeg dor leas than 185 days, || recoveny |5 considerid to be doubthal

Faraign camency rsk
Fuirwh cormunsy risk 18 the risk that the Sirvale or iure cas flows of am exoosure will Mucrails becesse of changus @ fregn sschange rates The Comstryg’s paposure 2o fe itk of changes = fasyn unchange rates reiatey

srirmariby b e Caripary’s cosrmting scisilies (hen revers af exjnnss iy disominsted in 4 oreggn aoency]. The Comisny hus not beelged il enposute (o fhuctistions = e faegn eechangs rates on considerng thal the Cempary
will setrhe e ntim nEposs within a penos of 13 muntks and the isgeiticast mpact af amy fechistiom m this e o s eperdinons

Formign tutransy seniltivity
Thue lilizsionss abilos dermurstiate the wensdivty b  rensaialsy petsihle changs in USD escharge rtds, wal &l uther usrisbhes hald constant The snpsct on fhie Comeay's profit balone ta o due f cienges = (he G vales of

msanetary azseis and lalnhims

Mareh 11, 005 Whmrch 51, X34
Increais { decreasn i EHuct omproft belee. imeruase [ docresein Ettect an prodit behors
raj= e rate tas
LS payaiiies +5% [EET]] 5% (0,58

-5 =K'} i .56
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Ligulridty Fitk

e The ©

Limustiny risk b defmon an the rick that the Compame will por b alle ta sile of maet ds sbiigations on sime ar at a

& finanes dagartmeant o responsible for lquadey, fending s well 4y selldmein

marsgnreent W eddition, proceses and salides lated b nich sdkoane owersesn by Senime managemen ] Managsmeal monion e Compaeny's net losidity positian on s manthly and puarier by bass fareigh it Samar managament

miring aml bisard mugtingt. They use rolling ferecests an e By ol sxpeciad cask Vo

Thin Saerian anagament gasunes that Hhe luture cavh flow nesdy are mel (o eiih N oo 1P cperating activities and short berm bocrawings Irim ik

Vi Lol b iLipsemasrey the maturity prodils of the Compeny's inancial liehilies haseil omn contraciel indscoumiod pavmenty

Mgk managarseni- Ligaiditg rigk s 3

o dersand Latis than 3 maonths 312 f 1= years Marn han § yers

March 11, 1025
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Sorumty gapoll AHg 13 - L gr LO53 5 I,55T-R4
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Banosings 4T M 7o LEI ST 1,16 44 4657 14
Security depest BOT 08 551 53 - LAETLT
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CHher fmancal |l vy 0. ImIe - &nos
Tatal aran HLTS 30030 1,457 40 1,7R5.44 i, IR4.10
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Far the peroaee of the Company's AL mansgasenr, capimal incuses ased egusy cepial snd all othes equity resersm stirbuisble b the equiy Baldars of tha Company, Tre prmany ohyechiue af the Compaity's Gistal managamiit

in lm e riaunm tyal (i rslaing & strnng credit mbing and hestthy aptal mtio in order 1o appor) 18 b s anil mavenise shamholder valuo.
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{ive divitmrel payrent 1 snaswhakden, rmturen capital 10 sharehoider or taue now shases, The Compniny monitars the capital using gaateg ratic. The Company inchides wilkin ned debit, Mass Wl intrrest bearing losns and

borrowings, less cash amil casd ssptealents,

Fartioeles farch 31, 3025 March 31, 2024
Borrawings |Kate 16} 1M 464314
Liras casle and showt drm an long et sepinads (Mote 1300 and 18] H0F2 410.18
et dei 1,42.39 4,329
Eguarty share capitad | Note 54] LB L a4
Crthet ety |Mabe L5} 4,597, 143350
Totsl capizal 4,597 .57 Lasaon
Capital #nif mel delit W34 16 78401
£ 55

Geating ratio
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Pates bo the Finencial SEaEEments

[ANl @misints are i indien Nepees milllons, anbess atherwiie stated)

LELLE )

Soclal Security Code
the Cotte an Sacial Securiy 2020 | the Code”] elatog 16 smplayee bonafits, during th smulaymant and past-smebeyrint, has recaived Prscenttal sssart an Septmaer M, 30 The Code kas been il in the Gazette of India

Eureher; e Minsstry af Labour amd Empliemie ik slaaiial deafl rules for e Ceds an Movernber 13, 3030, Husaner, th affictive dale frm stich the harges are applicibls (5 yet 1 be nabdied aml b for quantibying the fndncal
iiriact 40w alsa nobwed nnued
Thee Comaary will assnis i imaact of the Coce ind wil glve dpaimrate smpest o the linancal statemess in this pariod in which, the Cods hreamer uHertive and the ietatisl rules 10 determine the finaneal impact are published

Moge A0
Thee Cormaary hs ifripesil pesenty, plait ars ssuimmint undey ERCG schemn anil avadiod snsmpaion of custam duty Sahility on imparted materisl dmsntieg 1 MR 525 54 malliom wa o the matfeation fo. 5773004 dated Seatemaer L

JO04 |4 pmencled fram gme 16 i) lesed by the Central Gowernress o sxorese af powers conferind undar section 251} of 13 Cipsteens ArT, VS52 The eagon calgation under the sshemme againse this sawngs comes 1o (A 115320
millian. s or balenes dviat dasm, the balence ohbgatian yet o b helibed o s, 100 9952 38 mllion (Msnch 31, 2024, 1NR L 77332 mllan) in seconbares wath Inch A% 20, hi duty il s capitalazsd and B0 13775 milion [March 51, 1004

B 11844 inilliin] s ecagnizet =y inesstiin receaved which has besn rucognised as other income, on sscesnt of proportiomate fulfilmeal of the et ablgativn, Thi Campany wil aceoun) far Ehil riinainmg scentive meesnd im e
ok of accourd s il shei wuch eapon obiigslien s fullilled

Mot= 41
This Corsguary ik recohved an alighsiny Weier dased lune 20, 2024 (rom Directorsis of Tourmm {Daf), Geuammsnt of Mahataihiog laf ingentivis under e Touriun Peliey 20146 for the Nite Carton Hodol, As per the eliglity leiter,

inceeives of 160 2,999, 7H esdlian have besn detesmined s B basiy of elgible espindifun incored on praparty, plant and equigment and ane granmnd i g e of vefund al rwl SE5T @aid and slectroty duty over & getod of Jyears
e Comrpasy bt rocognised (HA 79 5 milise a5 incentive seams, o= the basis of the met SE5T pall by T hatal duning tre year,

Hope 42

Dther pote
The Commpany Bas irbé 3 coan bing wafwase for mantaiveng s fmaks of aecount ahich s a fature of recmding audie tall (edit log] Taclity and il sam hai pperated throughenit the year for all eievent ransictions rcarded in the

sdtmare earst that audittrad Fetuse s noTunablod far certmin charges mada, IF any, useg pvieged) adminiibatie access rghly bo the Jpplicaton {in tee of SAP &4 HANA and SAF 6] anilfor the underlying dataliase (in e al 532

S HANS, SAP GO and Dosea),
The Conpaty Ras ot come aoess sy e apee of audie rafl featorn boing tampirad with, in nespect of scccanting sedbware]|s) whene the atdit Wil has been gnatled

Aclitianaby, the suelil tra of proe year las Gin prussesod by the Company ab ar the Statimry requirdmines far coid fetentian o fhe sstsat it s natied and recortid inthe respectnm yess weapt thi sudit tra far ane sufteare
wsel in fhie hogul bupiness {Den e 10 Site Corlten] in tespecn ol thiesear ended March 13, 2034 has rot heen pressrvs] o she Company s per the slaliary reuirements fooe el rutENEOe 2z stulesd in Noke 42 19 the financil

atnbeménty

Further, the Campany hag user thrisg stvesnting subivase in bhe habel b [Poopiesolt, Simphony, Biichstioel) sinch de operabeil Ly e party sotbanre weraon gdoviduri. in the abmentw al amy alissrationson miidi trafl P in
thu ruspoctive Servies Or ganivation Cosaraly (45C) repoets, we ard unable to comment an wsther auds mail Teahune of e sufiwane was enableyd anid speated fraughout 1 yost do Jll rekraant transsctions reedrded in this sl

e wehithitl Thilfu weis ary instanees =l thie sulit tral fexture heing lampind wish

Matedl

1 T Cainpany dues =t have sy Senam) presersy, whed iy glacouding has bean inibatel or pnibeg against she Group far halding aey Benami property ardes the Benams Transcians (Peoksbaion) Act, 198 and rulus mada
thereusdes

i] T Coempany has borrowings from Denks and detesds of chane 4rs mensioned in Rote 1

il T Cormpany B mis bisen dicared wisil delelies sy dep bank or financial instiletion o goesrnment or sy govsmmen aulhory,

| TR Campany has not traded o imiteml in ot currency or wrtusd cumency during har purren| or preveus pear

4] There in m tncarte usrindeend of dicloveid ay ifeanie during the curent or previois wad in the B ey under th ncame TaxAct, 191 that hay nut been vecurdel in the Baaks of aroosink

wil Tha Coempamy han nnd recioed oy Baind Fram any serian]u ar enbbyiess, weluirg foregn dembies [Fundimg Party) wih the undertandieg [whether eootded insribing or otlinrsene) 1hat thn company shall o Secity or indhecily lend
ar oot i ol e Ee entis idunilied o any manees siataever by ar an hebalf ol the Eiinding Parsy {Ulbmate Bereliciaries] or b prodide ony guarnise, sotutily or the ke on behall ul tha ultimate henefcare

Pl aew Eh dutayaf they ey sitviread Iy the Company durmg e yosr endid March 31, 2025, t= fnfesrmedaries for dortber advanceg 19 thie Uliimate el

amuaint of fumd funher advameed or
b apy wehich fands ae Rurther advanced
h

sdarma af the intermediary 19 which the fands are Sk o Tisin i Ak of lunds i iy ikt tn athi Inared or invested by ssh intermadiaries @ ik
mdunneed advanced AL P i b pAlar Inteermediaries or Ultimate sl

Beneficianes
Sotahe Prvate Lmidmd 11.0ct-24 L] 1-0er-24 10000 jusmbe Hotels Primbe Limiled
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The Cormmaity Ras comsies with the relevant srouisioes of the Tonign Fachangs Maragursent A, 1999 12.of 1595) and (e Cormpanes A, 013 far the abuyw Tansactions and the trassictioes ane net solitive of the Preventions of
Furay Lasndering Act, 2002 15 al J003)
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o ate that duesis ol che funds acdvanced by the Cormpasry dnng thi year andes Slorch 31, 3024, ba Inkermilie s lor e sdvancig o the Ullimale Lol

Amownt of fund furiher advanced ar
oate tm which lunds are further advanced
i iaries
Marse i thee inkrymetinry b tupiich e funcl A Date of Funds advanced mﬂ"’d' ieested by IntermEaies 1o aihor It:"ﬂ u:‘ﬂmmudhv ""':1 I"'n": AL fitmate Bensficlary
indarmmadiariny or UiHmat= Deneficisrde AH
Heneficemes
21282011 L,ECC 00 Seameicy Businew Huh Prods
Limited
T 13072 a
Balewmati Tmthguisk Pyl Lid i Lia Skl {18166 Entuspive Data Farks Frivate
Limitesd
Ealewart Techpark Mt Lid 14-01 20 ) Lo 15-03-2022 10000 Crmam Immatmes] Fisain
Trust
Bakewaili Techaark Pyt Lid RE-03-2024 sm R34 3000 AZEDOnline Sersices Privale
I tiiimd
Sulewadh Tethoark Pl Lid 7103208 165.00 21382024 |5 Enturprive Data Farks Private
Limit=d
Finest-in Buxiness ifark P Led 5= {20 LELRIL] 115-08-2023 S300 juncho Hotel Praabe Limiled
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Bl ey Laundeneg Act, 7092 | 1% of 3007)
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